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STAFF REPORT             
May 16, 2006





(13, 14)PRIVATE 

RE: 



a. Case No. 1523-V




b. Case No. 1524-V
APPLICANT:


Pulte Homes of Kansas City

15700 College Blvd., Suite 201

Lenexa, Kansas 66219

AGENT:


Eric Ramer
Weiskirch & Parks Engineers, Inc.

111 N. Main, Suite 10

Independence, Missouri  64050
LOCATION: 


Northeast quadrant of NE 76th Street and N Spruce Avenue
REQUEST:  


a. to vacate a portion of NE 77th Terrace east of N Spruce Avenue




b. to vacate a portion of N Kensington Avenue south of NE 77th Terrace
SURROUNDING 

LAND USE: 


Undeveloped, proposed residential, zoned RA and R-2b

MAJOR STREET PLAN:
Neither NE 77th Terrace nor N Kensington Avenue are classified by the City’s Major Street Plan. 

PREVIOUS CASES: 

Case No. 12542-P-2 and 12542-CUP-4 - Rezoned approximately 117 acres from District RA (agricultural) to R-2b (two-family dwellings) and approved a community unit project plan for 221 single-family lots and 560 apartment units.  (Ordinance Nos. 030268 and 030269, passed March 27, 2003)





SD 1119B, Final Plat - Kings Gate, 3rd Plat - A request to approve a final plat on approximately 35.51 acres on the east side of N Spruce Avenue, (future Maplewoods Parkway) south of N.E. 78th Street in District R-2b, to allow for 104 single-family lots, 2 stormwater detention tracts and 1 private open space tract. (Approved by the City Plan Commission, December 20, 2005.  No City Council action to date.)
PLAN REVIEW/ANALYSIS: 

The preliminary plan for the King’s Gate development proposes minor realignment of both existing NE 77th Terrace and N Kensington Avenue.  NE 77th Terrace will shift slightly to the south, with the additional right of way to be dedicated by an adjacent owner.  Case No. 1523-V proposes the vacation of what will become excess right of way, and its use as part of residential lots in King’s Gate.  N Kensington Avenue will shift slightly to the east, with additional right of way to be dedicated by the developer of King’s Gate.  The excess right of way to the west is proposed for vacation by Case No. 1524-V, and would accrue to the previously mentioned adjacent landowner.  Following the vacations and dedications, both NE 77th Terrace and N Kensington Avenue will still have standard rights of way of at least 50 feet.
The preliminary community unit project plan proposes a connection to future Maple Woods Parkway at the southeast corner of the plat.  With the date of construction of the parkway uncertain, a physical connection of N Kensington Avenue to NE 76th Street must be maintained, in a public right of way.  The original request to vacate a portion of N Kensington Avenue all the way from NE 77th Terrace to NE 76th Street has been shortened to retain that connection.  Upon construction of the parkway and the street connection from the plat, the remaining portion of N Kensington Avenue may be vacated.
Per the utility comments, the only utilities within the areas to be vacated are City-owned streetlights.  No easement need be retained, however the lights should be relocated at the expense of the developer.  Since the rights of way to be dedicated are outside the plat boundaries, the vacation ordinances should simultaneously accept them.  Deeds for both dedications have been executed and recorded, but need to be accepted by ordinance to become right of way.
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Staff recommends approval of Case No. 1523-V subject to the following conditions:

1. 
That the developer relocate any existing streetlights as required by Development Services
2. 
That the vacation ordinance simultaneously accept right of way for realigned NE 77th Terrace as required by Development Services.
Staff recommends approval of Case No. 1524-V subject to the following conditions:

1. 
That the developer relocate any existing streetlights as required by Development Services
2. 
That the vacation ordinance simultaneously accept right of way for realigned N Kensington Avenue as required by Development Services.
Respectfully submitted,

Larry H. Stice

Planner 


